PROPERTY ADDRESS:

City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & [Landmarks 426 South Third Street

Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-10-202-009, -010

HISTORIC NAME: Nelson House

COMMON NAME:

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1853

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 1968, 1989

ARCHITECT: Thomas Emma (1968)

BUILDER:
WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [ BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Greek Revival, ltalianate

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Rectangular

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 2

[ ] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Limestone, Concrete (presumed)

E Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Clapboard

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: Yes (paired)

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: No

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Non-historic

IE Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood

|:| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Double Hung, 6/6, 1/1

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Gable

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY: None

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL: n/a

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action:




City of Geneva, lllinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

426 South Third Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

The property at 426 S. Third Street, the Samuel and Margaret
Nelson House, was built in 1853 and remained in the Nelson family
for over a century. Three generations of Nelson descendants lived in
the Greek Revival house from 1853 to 1960, with Helen "Nellie"
Ensign (1882—-1960) being the last family member to reside there.
Samuel Nelson, associated with the railroad's arrival in the area,
worked as a track master—a foreman responsible for maintaining
clear tracks—and later became a prominent merchant in Geneva.

The original structure includes the central portion of the house with
the street-facing gable and the left (south) wing. In 1968, the house
underwent a significant remodeling by architect Thomas Emma,
which involved adding mansard roofs and westward extensions. This
remodeling was completed by May 1969, according to a report in the
Geneva Republican.

The property suffered considerable damage in a fire in April 1989,

SOURCES:

GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869
Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land
Records; Geneva, lllinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, lllinois: 150
LReminders of 150 Years: Geneva Republican

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
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City of Geneva, Illinois
Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

426 South Third Street
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Sketch No.2
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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: The property at 426 S. Third Street, the Samuel and Margaret Nelson House, was built in 1853 and remained in the Nelson family for over a century. Three generations of Nelson descendants lived in the Greek Revival house from 1853 to 1960, with Helen "Nellie" Ensign (1882–1960) being the last family member to reside there. Samuel Nelson, associated with the railroad's arrival in the area, worked as a track master—a foreman responsible for maintaining clear tracks—and later became a prominent merchant in Geneva.

The original structure includes the central portion of the house with the street-facing gable and the left (south) wing. In 1968, the house underwent a significant remodeling by architect Thomas Emma, which involved adding mansard roofs and westward extensions. This remodeling was completed by May 1969, according to a report in the Geneva Republican.

The property suffered considerable damage in a fire in April 1989, with reports suggesting that the original sections of the house survived better than the newer additions. Reconstruction, overseen by Thomas Emma, followed historic images and guidelines provided by the Historic Preservation Commission (HPC). However, some changes were made, including relocating the original entry to the center of the street-facing gable section. Only two historic windows remain—flanking the primary entrance—and replacement windows differ in proportion from the originals. A new north wing was built between 1989 and 1990 to match the south wing, and a substantial addition was constructed on the west side of the house.

Due to the extensive remodeling, the fire, and the subsequent reconstruction, the property lost much of its architectural integrity, leading to its classification as a Contributing property. The HPC approved the reconstruction despite the lack of period-correct detailing and a contemporary interpretation of the historic architecture.

This property also holds historical significance for its connection to The Little Traveler property to the north and the broader developmental and economic history of Geneva, thanks to the Nelson family's contributions.
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